JOINT MUSEUMS COMMITTEE

AGENDA

Date:

Friday, 19th November, 2021

Time:

10.00 am

Venue:

City Gallery and Museum

JOINT MUSEUMS COMMITTEE
Information for Members of the Public
Part I of the Agenda includes items for discussion in public. You have the right to inspect copies of
Minutes and reports on this part of the Agenda as well as background documents used in the
preparation of these reports. Details of the background papers appear at the foot of each report. Part II
of the Agenda (if applicable) deals with items of 'Exempt Information' for which it is anticipated that
the public may be excluded from the meeting and neither reports nor background papers are open to
public inspection.
Please note that this is a public meeting and members of the public and press are permitted to report
on the proceedings. "Reporting" includes filming, photographing, making an audio recording and
providing commentary on proceedings. Any communicative method can be used to report on the
proceedings, including the internet, to publish, post or share the proceedings. Accordingly, the
attendance of members of the public at this meeting may be recorded and broadcast. By choosing to
attend this public meeting you are deemed to have given your consent to being filmed or recorded and
for any footage to be broadcast or published.
At the start of the meeting under the item 'Public Participation' up to fifteen minutes in total is allowed
for members of the public to present a petition, ask a question or comment on any matter on the
Agenda. Participants need to indicate that they wish to speak by 4.30 p.m. on the last working day
before the meeting by writing, telephoning or E-Mailing the officer mentioned below.
If you have any queries about this Agenda or require any details of background papers, further
documents or information please refer to the Officer Contact shown. Enquiries of a general nature can
be addressed to Margaret Johnson, Democratic Services Administrator, Democratic and Civic Services,
Guildhall, Worcester WR1 2EY Telephone: 01905 722085. E-Mail Address:
committeeadministration@worcester.gov.uk.
This agenda can be made available in large print, braille, on PC disk, tape or in a number of ethnic
minority languages. Please contact the above named officer for further information.
Agendas and minutes relating to all City Council Committees and Council Meetings are also
available electronically, click on the option “Committee Minutes and Documents”, Website
Address: worcester.gov.uk

2

Joint Museums Committee
Friday, 19 November 2021
Members of the Committee:-

Chairman: Councillor Lucy Hodgson (C)
Vice-Chairman: Councillor Matt Dormer (C)
Councillor Pat Agar (LCo)
C= Conservative

Councillor Andy Roberts (C)
G = Green
L = Labour
LCo = Labour and Co-operative
LD = Liberal Democrat

AGENDA
Part 1
(ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND DECISION IN PUBLIC)
1.

Appointment of Substitutes
To receive details of any Members appointed to attend the meeting instead of a
Member of the Committee.

2.

Declarations of Interest
To receive any declarations of interest.

3.

Public Participation
Up to a total of fifteen minutes can be allowed, each speaker being allocated a
maximum of five minutes, for members of the public to present a petition, ask a
question or comment on any item on the Agenda or within the remit of the
Committee.

4.

Minutes
Page(s): 1 - 4

Of the meeting held on 17th September 2021 to be approved and signed.
5.

Quarter 2 Performance Report 2021-22
Page(s): 5 - 14
Ward(s): All Wards
Contact Officer:
Philippa Tinsley, Museums Manager
Tel: 01905 25371
That the Joint Committee note the performance information provided relating to
the 2nd quarter 2021-22.

6.

Quarter 2 Finance Report 2021-22
Page(s): 15 - 18
Ward(s): All Wards

3

Contact Officer:

Mark Baldwin, Head of Finance
Tel: 01905 722007

That the Joint Committee reviews the financial monitoring details including budget
variances for the 2nd quarter ended 30th September 2021.
7.

Social Impact Development Work
Page(s): 19 - 22
Ward(s): All Wards
Contact Officer:
Philippa Tinsley, Museums Manager
Tel: 01905 25371
That the Joint Committee note the progress in developing programmes that
support the health and wellbeing needs in local communities.

8.

Museums Accreditation
Page(s): 23 - 28
Ward(s): All Wards
Contact Officer:
Philippa Tinsley, Museums Manager
Tel: 01905 25371
That the Joint Committee:
1. note the national position on Museum
Worcestershire’s preparation plans;

Accreditation

and

Museums

2. approve the extension of the current museum policies until March 2023; and
3. approve the deaccession proposal.

9.

Museums Charitable Bodies Update
Page(s): 29 - 36
Ward(s): All Wards
Contact Officer:
Philippa Tinsley, Museums Manager
Tel: 01905 25371
That the Joint Committee:
1. note the oversight protocols for the Tickenhill Collection Trust;
2. note the progress in establishing a fundraising charitable body; and
3. receive the annual report regarding the activities of the Tickenhill Collection
in 2020-21.

10.

Joint Museums Work Programme
Page(s): 37 - 38
Ward(s): All Wards
Contact Officer:
Philippa Tinsley, Museums Manager
Tel: 01905 25371
4

The Joint Committee is asked to note its future work programme and consider
whether there are any matters it would wish to be incorporated.

11.

Museums Admission Charges
Page(s): 39 - 42
Ward(s): All Wards
Contact Officer:
Philippa Tinsley, Museums Manager
Tel: 01905 25371
That the Joint Committee:
1. approve Hartlebury Castle Preservation Trust’s proposed 2022 admission
charges for Hartlebury Castle; and
2. approve the piloting of an admission charge for special temporary
exhibitions at Worcester Art Gallery and recommend this new charge to be
added to Worcester City Council’s 2022-23 fees and charges

12.

Any Other Business
Which in the opinion of the Chair is of sufficient urgency as to warrant
consideration.

13.

Item Involving the Disclosure of Exempt Information
The Committee are invited to pass the following resolution:That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and
public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the
grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of information as defined in
Schedule 12A of the said Act.
PART II
(ITEM FOR DISCUSSION AND DECISION IN PRIVATE)

14.

Hartlebury Castle Admissions
Page(s): 43 - 46
Ward(s): All Wards
Contact Officer:
Philippa Tinsley, Museums Manager
Tel: 01905 25371
That the Joint Committee note Hartlebury Castle Preservation Trust’s position on
admission charges to Hartlebury Castle.

15.

Museums Staff Review Business Case
Page(s): 47 - 58
Ward(s): All Wards
Contact Officer:
Philippa Tinsley, Museums Manager
Tel: 01905 25371

5

That the Joint Committee approve the proposed changes to staff roles, contract
status and responsibilities.

16.

Minutes (Exempt Items)
Page(s): 59 - 60
Of the meeting held on 17th September 2021 to be approved and signed.

6

Page 1

Agenda Item 4

JOINT MUSEUMS COMMITTEE
17th September 2021
Present:

Councillor Mrs Lucy Hodgson in the Chair
Councillors Agar and Roberts

13

Officers:

Hannah Perrott, Assistant Director of
Communities
(Worcestershire County Council)
Philippa Tinsley, Museums Manager
Helen Large, Museums Audiences Manager

Apologies:

Councillor Dormer

Appointment of Substitutes
None.

14

Declarations of Interest
None.

15

Public Participation
None.

16

Minutes
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 18th June 2021 be
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

17

Quarter 1 Performance Report 2021-22
The Joint Committee received a report on the performance information for the 1st
Quarter of 2021-22. Appendix 1, attached to the report, identified the
performance comparisons, of particular note was that the Museums were able to
reopen to the public on 17th May 2021. The Museums Manager drew the Joint
Committee’s attention to the new performance indicators for 2021.
In referring to the Service Plan at appendix 2, the Museums Manager stated that
most key targets/work areas were on track, only a few delayed due to the
lockdown.
The Museums Manager responded to questions from Joint Committee Members on
various aspects of the attached appendices.
RESOLVED: That the Joint Committee note the performance information
for Quarter 1 2021-2022.

Page 2
17th September 2021
18

2

Quarter 1 Finance Report 2021-22
The Joint Committee received the financial monitoring details, including budget
variances for the 1st Quarter ending 30th June 2021. The report provided
information on the position at Quarter 1, an explanation of main variances and
reserves.
The Museums Manager presented the report and informed Joint Committee
Members that the forecast year-end position at Quarter 1 is an £8,000,
underspend. The forecast year end underspend in the areas hosted by the City
Council were explained in paragraph 3.5 of the report.
The Museums Manager responded to questions from Joint Committee Members,
particularly around the explanation of the VAT status of the Commandery
admissions.
RESOLVED: That the Joint Committee note the financial monitoring
details, including budget variances for the 1st Quarter ended 30th June
2021.

19

City Museums Development
The Joint Committee considered a report on the City Museums Development.
The Museums Manager informed the Joint Committee that following submission of
the Worcester Town Investment Plan through the Towns Fund, the City was
awarded £19.6 million towards the plan in June 2021 and the Council confirmed
proposals for the allocation of this funding at its Policy and Resources Committee
on 7th September 2021. The next stage is the development of detailed business
cases for each of the selected projects.
One strand of work aims to make strategic investments in the City’s heritage, this
was highlighted in paragraph 2.4 of the report. The Joint Museums Committee
Members were also informed that a local philanthropist has approached the City
Council with a proposal to make a donations of £300,000 for the purchase of art
works in the City’s collection. Further details were provided at paragraphs 2.6 ad
2.7 of the report. Joint Committee Members acknowledged the significant
donation made to the City Museum.
Joint Committee Members were informed that the Council’s Head of Property and
Asset Management has been reviewing the facilities management across the City.
An enquiry has been made as to the museum team taking on the facilities and
Officer in Charge responsibility for the City’s offices at the Art Gallery and Museum
building to add to its responsibilities for the public museum spaces. A budget has
been allocated for an additional part-time member of staff.
The Museums Manager responded to questions from Joint Committee Members
who were informed that further discussions can be held at the members workshop
in January 2022.
RESOLVED: That the Joint Committee:

Page 3
17th September 2021

3

1. note the inclusion of the ambition for future development of the two
City Museums within Worcester’s Towns Fund plans;
2. note the offer of a significant donation to the City’s museum
collection and thank the donor for their generosity; and
3. approve the museum team taking on the facilities responsibility for
the City’s offices in the Art Gallery and Museum building.
20

Income Generation Report
The Joint Committee received a report on income generation.
The Museums Audiences Manager, in presenting the report, stated that the Covid19 pandemic had a significant impact on in come generation for museums, with
most income streams halted entirely during lockdown.
The pandemic had also influenced customer demand and expectation. The market
has changed with many hire venues discounting and adding benefits to win
business and customers.
The Museums Audiences Manager highlighted the key income generation strands,
namely retail, café partners, room hire, ticketing and membership and new
initiatives relating to the new Escape Room at The Commandery and potential to
develop the wellbeing strand of work at the County Museum. A report is planned
for the November meeting on this particular aspect.
The Museums Audiences Manager responded to questions from Joint Committee
Members, particularly in relation to Memberships and residents free entry to The
Commandery. A suggestion was made that an article in City Life would be useful
to highlight this as some residents did not seem to be aware. The Museums
Audiences Manager agreed to follow this up.
RESOLVED: That the Joint Committee note the post-Covid recovery in
income generation and next stage of work plan.

21

Museums 2022-23 Fees and Charges
The Joint Committee considered a report on the Museums 2022-23 fees and
charges. The proposed fees and charges for 2022-23 were highlighted in
Appendix 1 attached to the report.
The Museums Manager, in presenting the report, informed Joint Committee
Members that the charges proposed this year are predominantly an inflationary
increase. A standard 3% has been used and it is considered that this will ensure
museum charges continue in line with equivalent costs elsewhere.
Following advice from a commissioned retail consultant, admission charges have
been rounded to the nearest psychological price point. This has resulted in a
small number of fees, particularly the Commandery adult admission and the
County Museum only adult admission, rising at a higher than inflation rate. A
limited benchmark review suggest that the proposed admission charges are
competitive.

Page 4
17th September 2021

4

A small number of new fees at the City Museums are proposed, these were
highlighted in blue in the appendix and will be recommended for adoption as part
of the wider City Council fee setting process.
The Museums Manager responded to questions from Joint Committee Members,
particularly around concessions for those on low income.
RESOLVED: That the Joint Committee:
1. approve the proposed package of changes to the Museums’ fees and
charges and recommends their inclusion in the wider Worcester
City Council and Worcestershire County Council fee setting process;
and
2. approve the temporary alteration from 1/1/2022 of any fees to be
included in annual calendar-year publicity.
22

Joint Museums Committee Work Programme
The Joint Committee considered its future work programme.
The Museums Manager highlighted that the next meeting on 19th November 2021
will include an introduction to the Kurt Jackson Clay Country exhibition at the
Worcester Art Gallery and Museum at 9.00am. The Joint Committee Members
were also reminded of the workshop on future development planning to be held at
the Guildhall on 21st January 2022 at 10.00am.
There were no additional items added to the work programme.
RESOLVED: That the Joint Committee note the work programme.

23

Any Other Business
None.

24

Item Involving the Disclosure of Exempt Information
RESOLVED: That under Section 100A(4), the press and public be excluded
from the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds that it
involves the likely disclosure of information defined in Schedule 12A of
the said Act.

25

2022-2023 Joint Service Budgets
The Joint Committee considered and approved the Joint Service Budgets for 202223.
Duration of the meeting: 10.00a.m. to 11.40a.m.
Chair at the meeting on
19th November 2021

Page 5

Agenda Item 5

Report to: Joint Museums Committee, 17th September 2021
Report of: Museums Manager

Subject:

2021-22 QUARTER 2 PERFORMANCE

1.

Recommendation

1.1

That the Joint Committee note the performance information provided
relating to the 2nd quarter 2021-22.

2.

Background

2.1

The appended summary of performance indicators and the information below gives
an account of progress in delivering the work programme against plans and against
targets in comparison to previous years.

3.

Information

3.1

Performance at all three museums over the 2021 summer was in line with
performance in pre-pandemic summers. This suggests that museum visiting
behaviour is returning to similar patterns rather than significantly changing. This is
interesting to compare with libraries, where visits in person are still much lower than
in 2019, with users instead maximising opportunities for engaging digitally instead.
The power of real objects remains core to the museum experience.

3.2

At the Art Gallery & Museum, the Titanic exhibition was extremely popular and
comparative to 2019’s success with the Star Wars exhibition, after taking into
account the need to limit visitors to enable social distancing in the Art Gallery. The
service has learned a great deal about managing queuing and booking, which will be
used for future popular exhibition planning.

3.3

At Hartlebury Castle, a larger percentage than previously of visitors chose to visit
just the grounds rather than the whole site, with this choice driven by the increased
offer outdoors as well as the perception that this is safer when mixing with other
households. Family visits have increased and concession visits decreased. While this
reflects our joint aim on site to offer facilities that attract more families, we also
hope to attract back older visitors out of season and have introduced off-season
short talks in the museum supporting this.

3.4

Although The Commandery experienced lower visitor numbers initially after
reopening, this improved with August and September seeing more visitors than in
previous years. Perhaps more importantly, this year has seen a step change in the
diversity of site users, with visitors coming for events, hires such as weddings,
formal and informal learning opportunities as well as tourists to Worcester.

Page 6

As a result The Commandery has made maximum use of its indoor and outdoor
space and has this year made a real impact for the local community as well as an
economic impact for the City. This diversity of use makes the site more resilient
long-term, as well as making it a lively space.
3.5

Earned income is back on track to align to targets. The diversity of income streams
the museums have developed has been central to this bounce-back, whereas sites
with less flexibility of space such as Worcester’s Guildhall have seen slower income
recovery. This learning on diverse income streams will feed into future planning for
the Art Gallery & Museum and for the County Museum.

3.6

The visitor return has seen a large increase in online activity which we anticipate
reflects a need this year for visitors to check Covid protocols before visiting and thus
unlikely to continue as visiting becomes more predictable. The use of Art Tickets
enabling visitors to book for events online has been a steep learning curve for staff
but has great potential for greater use ongoing.

3.7

Formal education numbers usually take a dip in quarter 2, but this year schools’
keenness to return late in the summer term and the Holiday, Activities and Food
programme at The Commandery in the school summer holiday has reversed that
historic trend. Lockdowns effectively stopped income from formal education
activities, but currently looks on track to return to normal levels through the autumn
term.

3.8

There has also been a big increase in informal learning participation. All sites have
made bigger use of family trails this summer, following piloting post-Covid funded by
the Culture Recovery Fund. Although this use partly compensates for the reduced
amount of interactives available as part of a normal Covid-safe visit, we will continue
to consider trails in our offer going forward.

3.9

The majority of work set out in the service plan is on track to achieve, albeit with
some delays due to having kept posts vacant when income was uncertain. Recruiting
is now a challenge and there is currently reduced capacity in several areas. It is not
expected that any initiatives will have to be cancelled, just that some milestones
may have to be adjusted as we approach year end.

Ward(s):
Contact Officer:
Supporting documents:

All wards
Philippa Tinsley, Tel: 01905 25371, email:
philippa.tinsley@worcester.gov.uk
Appendix 1: MW PIs summary Q2 2021-22
Appendix 2: MW Service Plan 2021-22 Q2

Museums Worcestershire Performance Indicators
2021-22 Quarter 2
2021-22 Q2
20,336

2020-21 Q2
6,847

2019-20 Q2
27,016

2018-19 Q2
17,095

2017-18 Q2
17,468

Notes

measures
Participation

2021-22 Q2
5,033

2020-21 Q2
1,640

2019-20 Q2
5,296

2018-19 Q2
6,058

2017-18 Q2
7,144

Notes

measures
Participation

2021-22 Q2
6,485

2020-21 Q2
3,071

2019-20 Q2
6,872

2018-19 Q2
7,118

2017-18 Q2
4,891

Notes

Website users sessions

measures
Reach

2021-22 Q2
45,738

2020-21 Q2
29,975

2019-20 Q2
37,668

2018-19 Q2
85,777
(roughly
equivalent to
28,592 users)

2017-18 Q2
71,227
(roughly
equivalent to
23,742 users)

Notes
PI changed from
‘sessions’ to
‘users’ in 2019

Social media followers

Reach

20,008

Income performance for all sites
against target (%)

Viability

Number of children and young
people visiting as part of a formal
education programme

Engagement

108%
Income
£54,671
1,545

New PI for
2021
29.7%
Income
£15,311
300

90.3%
Income
£47,084
569

88%
Income
£43,907
725

2,929

420

2,258

1,829

17%

New PI for
2021

Number of visitors, Worcester City
Art Gallery & Museum

Number of visitors, Commandery

Number of visitors, County
Museum at Hartlebury Castle

18,673 in Q1

13% in Q1

Agenda Item 5

Not
previously
measured
Previously
only
measured as
income
Not
previously
measured

Appendix 1

Number of learners engaged in
Engagement
informal education programmes,
adults and children
Average improvement in
Impact
wellbeing experienced by museum
visitors and participants

Page 7

measures
Participation

TITANIC EXHIBITION AT WORCESTER ART GALLERY
Art Tickets booked slot data show us:
Visitors coming to Worcester for this exhibition from across the UK, and
particularly from North Worcestershire and the urban West Midlands
conurbation.

Page 8

TITANIC EXHIBITION PRESS COVERAGE

21/5/21 Slapmag

26/3/21 – What’s On Live website

10/5/21 Waitrose Magazine

29/3/21 and 6/5/21 – Weekend Notes website

25/6/21 Worcestershire Live

4/5/21 – Brumpic online/twitter/facebook

25/6/21 Birmingham Mail

05/05/2021 – Birmingham Press website

16/7/21 Worcester News

06/05/2021 Culture Response Unit Newsletter May

16/7/21 Birmingham Press website

9/05/2021 Worcester News

17/7/21 Brumpic website

9/05/2021 Brum Hour website

22/7/21 West Midlands Culture Response Unit Newsletter August

9/05/2021 Droitwich Standard

August What’s On Warwickshire Magazine

9/05/2021 Worcester Observer

August What’s On Worcestershire Magazine

13/05/2021 Berrow’s Worcester Journal, Front page lead and inside page

25/8/21 Worcestershire Live, Facebook live from the Gallery/exhibition

15/05/2021 Worcester News

1/9/21 Worcester Observer

May/June Worcester What’s On Magazine

2/9/21 Birmingham Press website

May/June Birmingham What’s On Magazine

1 – 11 Sept Brum Hour twitter

May/June Warwickshire What’s On Magazine

3/9/21 Brumpic facebook and twitter

May/June Wolverhampton What’s On Magazine

6/9/21 Bromsgrove Standard

May/June Staffordshire What’s On Magazine

6/9/21 Evesham Observer

May/June Shropshire What’s On Magazine

7/9/2 Worcester News

Page 9

Art Fund website, duration of exhibition

This page is intentionally left blank

MUSEUMS WORCESTERSHIRE
Page 11

SERVICE PLAN 2021-22
End of Q2 review

Agenda Item 5

Appendix 2

Strategic
Objective

Develop the venues and
collections for the future.
Work with visitors,
stakeholders, funders and
partners to grow an
ambitious and sustainable
service.

Key Targets/Work Areas

Actions

What

What

1.

Curate an ambitious programme of exhibitions at Worcester City Art Gallery & Museum
supported by partners and funders
- Summer family audience, Titanic
Very successful and popular exhibition with over 20,000 visitors; highest visitor numbers
for latter part of May recorded, third busiest June and fourth busiest July, even with
numbers having to be kept within maximum limits for Covid mitigation.

Recover from the impact of the
Covid pandemic and return to a
rising trend in visitor numbers at all
sites by delivering a programme of
new exhibitions, displays, learning
and events.

By when

Sept 21

Aug 21

Plan a new programme of onsite gallery tours and showcase Saturdays linked to
exhibition programme at Worcester City Art Gallery & Museum for post-Covid recovery
Programme underway:
 Bitesize talks in person again
 Gallery tours
 Museum After Hours and special family events
 Family trails
 Showcase Saturdays and informal learning workshops
Gallery tours to be added in 2022, with a further review of programme,

Sept 21

Launch revised formal education sessions at The Commandery
New Birthplace of Democracy and revised Civil War and Tudors sessions launched and
publicised; successful take up for new school year.

Sept 21

1

Page 12

Commission a marketing campaign reaching a wider regional audience alongside the
Titanic exhibition
Extensive marketing campaign attracted audiences into the city from North
Worcestershire and West Midlands as well as from distant locations such as Torquay and
Leeds. Postcode data for areas within a 45 minute drive time with potential audience
characteristics was used to lead campaign, and was successful in attracting many firsttime visitors into Worcester.

Strategic
Objective

Key Targets/Work Areas
What

Actions
What

By when

Introduce talks at County Museum to enhanced the visit on less popular visit days
Script complete and trials with visitors taking place through Sept/Oct before it becomes a
permanent part of the offer.

Sept 21

2.

Embed learning from the lockdown
period and emergency fund projects
into ongoing work.

Continue to support our local heritage community
 Promote toolkits and guidance films
Toolkits and films are complete and have been promoted in phases to:
 County heritage sector
 early careers and educational organisations
 specialist heritage groups
 wider heritage sector

Sept 21

Make a difference in our
communities.
Creatively use museums’
unique assets to increase our
users’ wellbeing and
contribute to the economic
development of the city and
county.

3.

Grow the wellbeing impacts of
project work into service-wide
development



Aug 21

Grow and diversify our
funding and resilience.
Maximise the potential of our
resources to develop new,
and further strengthen
existing sources of revenue.

4.

Develop the range of income
streams across museums.

Review café contracts and plan maximisation of opportunity
 Re-licence Commandery café for next 5 years
New licence tendered, negotiated and in place, with terms further developed and
increased income targets

create the new Visitor Welcome Volunteer at The Commandery

Page 13

Strengthen the core.
Develop display and learning
programmes and projects
that identify, focus and
promote the best of the
collections, buildings and our
expertise.

Role profile created and promoted, three new volunteers due to start shortly.
Promotion will continue as we need a large team. Other volunteering roles at
Commandery will be added in due course.

2

Sept 21

Strategic
Objective

Key Targets/Work Areas
What

Actions
By when



Work with property to install new toilet so the cafe can operate more
independently
Slightly delayed in starting but now underway on site. Will be complete for new season.

July 21

Research potential for blacksmithing courses at the County Museum
Research into competitors complete.
Next steps will be to assess viability of running courses and investigate upfront costs to
develop a business plan.

Sept 21

Investigate opportunities for culture-specific tax positions with finance teams
Several options investigated and discussed with the City’s VAT advisors.
City’s current VAT position seems to rule out any opportunity being possible, although
this could be reviewed again in the future, using a cultural VAT specialist.

July 21

3

Page 14

What

Page 15

Agenda Item 6

Report to: Joint Museums Committee, 19 November 2021
Report of: Head of Finance

Subject:

Q2 Finance Report 2021/22

1.

Recommendation

1.1

That the Joint Committee reviews the financial monitoring details including
budget variances for the 2nd quarter ended 30th September 2021.

2.

Background

2.1

This report provides information on the following at Q2:





Forecast Year end position as at Q2 30th September 2021
Explanation of main variances
Draft budget proposal 2022/23
Reserves

3.

Information

3.1

Q2 Revenue Budget Performance
The forecast year-end position for the City-hosted teams at Q2 is £13,827 surplus
with the Government providing us with an estimated £18,900 for loss of income in
Q1.

3.2

Table 1: 2021/22 Projected Year End Outturn as at 30th September 2021

Worcester City Hosting
Museum and Art Gallery
Commandery
Joint Museums Collections Team
Joint Museums Management Team
Projects
Total (Surplus)
Transfer to/from reserves
Worcester City contribution
Worcester County contribution
Funding

2021/22
Budget
224,336
105,776
89,809
266,334

Year End
2021/22
233,625
121,698
90,489
226,615

Variance
9,289
15,922
680
(39,719)

14,470

14,470

-

700,725
(14,470)
(496,133)
(190,122)

686,897
(14,470)
(496,133)
(190,122)

(13,827)
-

(700,725)

(700,725)

-

Variance
%
4%
15%
1%
-15%
0%
-2%

Page 16

3.3

Table 2: Subjective Analysis 2021/2022

Worcester City Hosting
Employees
Premises
Transport
Supplies & services
Third Party Payment
Fees & Charges
Other Income
Grants & Contributions
Transfer from reserves

2021/22
Year End
Budget
2021/22
766,051
715,349
2,670
1,980
4,150
3,788
122,024
124,940
13,000
(83,100)
(48,850)
(73,800)
(67,139)
(726,525)
(745,425)
(11,470)

(11,470)

-

0

(13,827)

(13,827)

Total (Surplus)

3.4

Table 3: 2021/22 Projected Year End Outturn as at 30th September 2021
2021/22
Budget
212,021

County Hosting
Hartlebury Operations
3.5

Variance
(50,702)
(690)
(362)
2,916
13,000
34,250
6,661
(18,900)

Variance
%
-7%
-26%
-9%
2%
0%
41%
9%
-3%

Projected
2021/22
210,524

Variance
(1,497)

Variance
%
- 0.71%

Table 4: Subjective Analysis 2021/22

County Hosting
Employees
Premises
Transport
Supplies & services
Income
Total (Surplus)

2021/22
Year End
Budget
2021/22
Variance
237,174
228,949
(8,225)
2,550
2,150
(400)
4,826
3,826
(1,000)
32,977
30,079
(2,898)
(65,506)
(54,480)
11,026
212,021

210,524

(1,497)

Variance %
-3.47%
-15.69%
-20.72%
-8.79%
41%
-0.71%

Hartlebury Operations is hosted by the County Council. This projection includes an
income-loss compensation allocation in Q1 of £18,187.
3.6

Explanation of major variances
The forecast year end underspend of £13,827 in the areas hosted by the City Council
is due to: A reduction in the income/commercial activity at all locations it is forecast to be
under target at Q2 due to the closure of all museums during Covid 19 lockdown.
There is also a saving on employee costs in the City-hosted teams from freezing
vacant posts and reducing expenditure on supplies for resale in the shops and cash
collection.

Page 17

The £13,000 expenditure on third party payments is a £10,000 settlement on a 2019
insurance claim and £3,000 for freelance marketing support to backfill essential
exhibition publicity whilst core posts are vacant.
Hartlebury Operations is projecting a small underspend. This will be managed within
expenditure budgets over the next two quarters.
Draft Budget proposal 2022/23

Worcester City Hosting
Base budget 2021/22
Plus inflation
Savings
Total (Including inflation)

2022/23 City
Contribution
Proposal
496,133
22,445
(21,000)
497,578

2022/23
County
Contribution
Proposal
212,021
6,372
-

2022/23
Total Draft
JMS Budget
708,154
28,817
(21,000)

218,393

715,971

The 2022/23 draft budget for the City Council is being prepared for review by
the Policy & Resources Committee on 14th December, final approval by Council in
February.

County Hosting – Hartlebury
Base budget 2021/22
Total (Plus inflation)

2022/23
Budget
Proposal
212,021
212,021

As noted by the Joint Museums Committee at their last meeting, the County will not
be increasing the base budget in line with inflation in 2022/23. Instead, the cost of
inflation will be met from a saving in the County Museum property costs. Funding to
cover the inflationary increases will be vired between the property budget and the
operations budget at the start of the 2022/23 financial year.
The County budgets will receive final approval by the Council in February.
3.7

Transformation savings
Worcester City has asked for £4,000 in savings in 2021/22. The VAT status in
Commandery admissions has been reviewed and it has been concluded that no
changes can be made as this may affect the City’s VAT exemption threshold.
The City Council has asked for £25,000 in savings in 2022/23, work is under way to
implement these less the £4,000 above that cannot be achieved.

Page 18

3.8

Surplus/deficit split
Under the terms of the agreement, any variance to budget within 5%, will be
transferred to the Joint Museum general reserve. The value of the reserve at the end
of Q1 was £97,510.
There have been no transfers from the general reserve in Q2

3.9

Restricted Reserves
These funds are restricted to be used on specific projects and museum work: Project reserve at end of Q1 £117,847
There have been no transfers from the Projects reserve in Q2
Donations reserve £11,846
No transfers have been made from this reserve in Q2
Other reserves: Shop stock (ring fenced reserve) £18,000

Ward(s):
Contact Officer:
Background Papers:

All
Mark Baldwin Tel: 01905 722007
Email: mark.baldwin@worcester.gov.uk
None

Page 19

Agenda Item 7

Report to: Joint Museums Committee, 19th November 2021
Report of: Museums Learning Manager

Subject:
1.
1.1

SOCIAL IMPACT DEVELOPMENT WORK

Recommendation
That the Joint Committee note the progress in developing programmes
that support the health and wellbeing needs in local communities.

2

Background

2.1

Museums Worcestershire has a track record of providing high quality programming
for its communities that makes a real difference. Historically, this has focussed on
outreach or project work. The learning team are looking to extend and embed the
benefits achieved so far into museum core programming. This will strengthen our
sites as community assets making social impact, in particular at the County Museum.

2.2

At the Joint Museums Committee in March 2021 a new performance indicator was
adopted to measure improvement in wellbeing for museum visitors and participants.
This wellbeing PI had been trialled through the Volunteers at Home programme and
the Creative Wellbeing programme during lockdown. Since being adopted,
participants taking part in activities with measured sessions have seen an average of
13% improved wellbeing in 2021-22 quarter one, and 17% increase in quarter two.

2.3

While we have been able to evidence improvement in wellbeing just from a normal
museum visit, areas of programming working with specific participants have
demonstrated deeper social impact:
Suitcase Stories: The third iteration of this county-wide programme using museum
objects to spark reminiscence for those living with dementia and their carers, took
place over 2021. This project was adjusted from previous iterations in order to
deliver flexibly both during and after lockdown and has generated new learning for
museums. Linking nine schools and nine care homes, Suitcase Stories 3 worked with
students in Worcestershire to create drama performances inspired by the memories
of people living with dementia in Worcestershire care homes. This work improved the
wellbeing of care home residents and developed the skills of care home staff,
educated school children about dementia, museums and drama. The evaluation from
this work will be used to shape future onsite dementia programming.
Volunteers: Museums Worcestershire has an established reputation for providing
meaningful volunteer opportunities. Work over the past three years has
strengthened this programme, developing new policies and procedures, creating new
work experience resources for young people, and enabling volunteers to take part
from home during lockdown. Our volunteers show improved confidence and
connections with other people, as well as the learning of new skills.

Page 20

Make Time: Funded by the Cultural Recovery Fund, in July 2021 the County
Museum trialled an informal community drop-in programme to offer opportunities for
local people to connect through our museum and use creativity to spark
conversation. We’ve seen the impacts for participants of improved confidence and
connections with others.
Holiday Activities and Food programme: The Commandery was funded by
Worcestershire Children First to run a summer programme for children and young
people eligible for free school meals and offered 360 places for the local area. This
was successfully delivered with excellent feedback from participants.
3

Information

3.1

Utilising the knowledge, expertise and evaluation data from the work completed so
far, Museums Worcestershire will use secured Culture Recovery Funding and
programme funding over the next 12 months to trial how community programmes
could evolve from project-funded temporary offers into longer term, commissionready programmes.

3.2

County Museum: From November 2021 through to September 2022, we will focus
on trialling three programmes where the sensory experience of museum objects is
used to improve health:

3.3

3.4



Informal community offer: with a focus on improving loneliness and
isolation, we will continue to trial Make Time to inform funding models and
improve links to the social prescribing network.



On site dementia programme: we will utilise knowledge gained from our
Suitcase Stories outreach programme and our partnership network to trial
onsite programming for people living with dementia both in early onset and
later stages.



Learning disabilities programme: working with SpeakEasy NOW’s user-led
forum, we will share the stories and learning team expertise in a consultation
exercise to see how we can support people with learning disabilities in
Worcestershire through the County Museum.

City Museums: From November 2021 we will also look at the social impact of:


Holiday Activities and Food programme: We have been successful in our
funding request to run this for 180 children and young people over Christmas.
We will evaluate the programme’s impact in order to develop the long-term
possibilities of this work for future funding models.



Embedded early years offer: At the Worcester City Art Gallery and Museum
we are working with the Early Years and Childcare Strategic Manager at
Worcestershire County Council to trial a new programme of activity that
addresses the County’s specific needs of young children and their parents.



Sight Concern: Development and evaluation of a year-long programme to
develop resources and workshops for visually-impaired local people.

Skills programmes: All sites will support research into:

Page 21

3.5



An assessment of need and opportunities to develop learning and work
experience programmes provide training, skills development and
apprenticeships.



Training and developing our volunteer roles, with new opportunities and
further evaluation of benefits for participants.

This phase of research and development will collate data and evaluation as well as
extend to a wider network of partnerships. This will inform business planning to seek
funding models for the museums to integrate social impact for our communities into
the core service long-term. Business models for this work will form part of the
options planning for County Museum development to be considered by the
committee at upcoming meetings.

Ward(s):
Contact Officer:
Background Papers:

All wards
Gemma Dhami, Tel: 01299 250416, email:
gemma.dhami@worcester.gov.uk
none

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 23

Agenda Item 8

Report to: Joint Museums Committee, 19th November 2021
Report of: Museums Manager

Subject:
1.

MUSEUM ACCREDITATION

Recommendation
That the Joint Committee:

1.1

note the national position on Museum Accreditation and Museums
Worcestershire’s preparation plans,

1.2

approve the extension of the current museum policies until March 2023, and
that

1.3

approve the deaccession proposal.

2.

Background

2.1

Museum Accreditation is a national standard that has been in place since the 1970s.
It sets out professional standards in collections care and management, visitor
engagement, forward planning and governance and requires museums to regularly
evidence their activity against these standards.

2.2

The standard is used as a basic requirement for a museum to be eligible for most
grant schemes, and to participate in professional activity such as lending and
borrowing artefacts from other museums for exhibition.

2.3

All three Museums Worcestershire museums have been accredited since the start of
the scheme and were last assessed in April 2017.

2.4

The programme is overseen by Arts Council England (ACE) and includes a
professional committee who assess and judge museums against the standard. The
schedule of assessment by ACE has been impacted by Covid and was paused for
over a year in order to support museums through the challenging period. Museums
are now being invited in waves to apply for re-assessment. It is anticipated that
Museums Worcestershire Museums will be invited in 2023.

2.5

It is important that the museums remain working to the standard over this pause,
and start to prepare for the next assessment. Museum policies adopted prior to the
last assessment have been reviewed and still meet the standard, albeit with some
updating required before the next assessment.

2.6

Rationalisation and disposal of collections is included in the Accreditation standard
and is supported as a tool to be used within a tight framework of checks and
balances.

Page 24

The Accreditation standard requires specific decision processes to be followed when
the disposal of any museum object is required, and the decision to dispose must be
made by the governing body.
The Joint Museums Committee adopted a disposal procedure aligned to Accreditation
at their meeting in November 2015.
3.

Preferred Option

3.1

In November 2015, the Joint Museums Committee approved the following policies for
adoption by Museums Worcestershire. These policies were originally scheduled for
review by the Committee in November 2020 in preparation for an expected
Accreditation assessment in 2021. It is proposed that the existing policies be
extended until March 2023:
 Museums Worcestershire Collections Management Policy
 Worcester City Museum Collections Development Policy
 Worcestershire County Museum Collections Development Policy

3.2

The Collections Development Policies require the most updating before 2023, partly
because of the work achieved over the last four years in improving research,
documentation and storage of the collections. The following work is proposed before
these return to the committee in March 2023:









3.3

The research gained through Glove Affair project, funded by Esmee Fairbairn
Collections Fund, the Vardo project, funded by the John Ellerman Foundation,
and the art collection supported by the upcoming philanthropist donation be
reviewed and development plans for these collections updated.
An investigation into which Worcestershire communities’ history are underrepresented in the collections be undertaken. Museums Worcestershire has a
network of community partners and proposes to consult through these
networks to better understand and build collections gaps.
The Tickenhill Collection be set out as a separate collection in line with its
charitable purpose.
Museums Worcestershire and Worcestershire Archive and Archaeology Service
took part in a national archaeology rationalisation scoping project in 2018 and
contributed to national guidelines. It is proposed to incorporate these
guidelines.
Scoping work for rationalisation has also been undertaken in the furniture and
transport collections and it is proposed to integrate recommendations from
this work.

Following investigation ahead of planned conservation of the Angela Caravan
(County Museum accession number 4142), it was found that the vehicle is damaged
beyond repair and cannot be moved or worked upon without further significant
damage, leaving very little left of the original available for research and the object
not suitable for display. Following the disposal procedure, a disposal report and
significance matrix has been completed and is appended to this report. It is
recommended that object be deaccessioned from the collection but retained by
Museums Worcestershire for use as a working object. It is proposed that the caravan
be reconstructed and used and stored outside in the grounds of Worcestershire
County Museum rather than conserved as a museum artefact.

Page 25

4.

Alternative Options Considered

4.1

In common with all museums, time allocated in work plans in 2020 and 2021 to
undertake the policy reviews required for Accreditation assessment has been
redirected towards Covid impact management and recovery.
Realigning that work to the new deadlines has enabled the museums to successfully
recover from the impact of the lockdowns.

4.2

Withdrawing from the Accreditation scheme and no longer being required to work to
the standard would have significant impacts on the ambition of the museums.
Without being Accredited, many of Museums Worcestershire’s externally-funded
projects and significant exhibitions would not have been possible.

4.3

Retaining the Angela Caravan (County Museum accession number 4142) within the
collection would mean attempting to stabilise what is left of the original object and
returning the incomplete caravan to store for long term storage. It’s likely that the
original caravan elements would be stored in parts to ensure safe transport and
handling. The proposed solution will ensure that the object can be used by the
museum, albeit not with the status of collection object and the additional
responsibilities for preservation this entails.

5.

Implications

5.1

Financial and Budgetary Implications
Accreditation assessment does require time set aside in the work programme and it
can impact on other capacity. But this is far outweighed by the benefits of grant
funding and networks available to Accredited museums.
Reconstructing the Angela Caravan so it can be safely used can be achieved within
the funding available in core budgets.

5.2

Legal and Governance Implications
There are no legal or governance implications to these proposals, assuming adopted
policies and procedures are followed.

5.3

Risk Implications
There is a risk in not renewing policies or pursuing Accredited status, as delivering
below Accredited standards can put the museums at risk of reputational damage or
impact on forward planning ambitions.

5.4

Corporate/Policy Implications
This report will ensure that key museum policies remain operational and sets out the
way forward to update these over the next 18 months when they will return to the
committee.

5.5

Equality Implications
Equalities policies and procedures are considered as part of Accreditation
assessment, so this is an additional assurance of best practice in this area. The
planning to consider histories under-represented in Worcester and Worcestershire’s
museum collections will include communities with protected characteristics in the
programme of consultation.

5.6

Human Resources Implications
There are no specific HR implications to these proposals

Page 26

5.7

Health and Safety Implications
There are some H&S implications implicit in the collecting of certain object types.
These are identified in the policies adopted in 2015 and are not believed to have
changed in the interim, although will be reviewed as part of the updating work.

5.8

Social, Environmental and Economic Implications
This work contributes to the museums wider aims to improve the social,
environmental and economic impacts for Worcestershire residents.

Ward(s):
Contact Officer:

All Wards
Philippa Tinsley, Tel: 01905 25371, email:
philippa.tinsley@worcester.gov.uk
Background Papers:
Joint Museums Committee meeting 23 November 2015,
reports pack
Supporting Documents: Appendix Angela Caravan Disposal Report

Page 27

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1

Disposal Report
Worcestershire County Museum Collection
Accession Number 4146 Angela Caravan
Background
In 2012 a 1920s hand-built leisure caravan named Angela was donated to Worcestershire County
Council to reflect the caravanning leisure activities of the wider population and for display behind the
Castle 3 Motor Car currently on display in the Transport Gallery at Worcestershire County Museum.
Angela was donated by the Wardle family from Wareham who owned the caravan for almost 70 years
and was hand built by the Angela Caravan Company of Flamstead near St.Albans between the years
1922 – 1924 and is one of only 25 remaining. The Angela Caravan Company was formed in 1931 and
owned by the Purdey family who had been cart builders for over 100 years. Angela was the name of the
owner’s daughter. In 1940 the company ceased trading and was taken over by the Army.
There was concern in 2012 that the caravan was in a deteriorated state and the scale of resources that
may be required to conserve the item could be significant.
Current Position
The caravan is an original item and offered potential for conservation, but investigations have
discovered that it has had many modern alterations prior to acquisition and is in such a poor physical
state that it is unsafe for use, fragile and has very little salvageable material on the vehicle to be
deemed useful for research or practical study.





The chassis and wheels will need extensive work, requiring new spokes, tyres and inner tubes.
All the outer trim will be lost during restoration due to deterioration. Each body panel of the
vehicle will need to be removed and replaced.
The roof is not original and is a fibreglass replacement that will need to be removed.
Most of the interior has already been removed prior to acquisition or has been destroyed by
rodents and will therefore need to be replaced.

All that will remain of the original vehicle is some of the chassis, floor, sides and ends of the mollycroft
roof and most of the bare frame of the vehicle but not all as some of this will also need replacing due to
rot.

Page 28

Vardo Project – Angela 2021

In accordance with the Museums Worcestershire Acquisition and Disposals Procedure, a disposal report
was prepared by curatorial officers and a significance matrix created to inform suitability for disposal.
Comes from the Museums Worcestershire geographical
collecting area
Has research potential

Has associations with people or events
Is in stable, displayable condition
Is an original object
It is the best/only examples or samples in the collection
Its is the best/only examples or samples in other collections
It is safe to store and handle

No – Warwickshire
No - Other examples exist, very
little of this example is original or
indeed remaining.
No
No
Partly
Yes, only example
No
No - Structure has become
unstable.

Is the object of low significance? Yes
An object should be considered of low significance if it meets five or more of the above criteria

Recommendation
The vehicle is not displayable due to its condition, is damaged beyond repair and cannot be moved or
worked upon without further significant damage, leaving very little left of the original useful for
research or conservation. It is recommended that object be deaccessioned from the collection.
Museums Worcestershire would aim to retain the object and reconstruct the caravan for use as a
working object placed outside in the grounds of Worcestershire County Museum rather than conserve
the object as a museum artefact.

Page 29

Agenda Item 9

Report to: Joint Museums Committee, 17th September 2021
Report of: Museums Manager

Subject:
1.

MUSEUM CHARITABLE BODIES UPDATE

Recommendation
That the Joint Committee:

1.1

note the oversight protocols for the Tickenhill Collection Trust,

1.2

note the progress in establishing a fundraising charitable body, and

1.3

receive the annual report regarding the activities of the Tickenhill Collection
in 2020-21.

2

Background

2.3

Museums Worcestershire currently supports the working of a charitable trust, the
Tickenhill Collection Trust, registered charity 527509, as part of its management of
the Worcestershire County Museum. The sole trustee of this charity is Worcestershire
County Council.

2.4

In January 2019, the Joint Museums Committee approved investigation to enable
Worcestershire County Council to better meet the Charity Commission’s reporting
requirements for the Tickenhill Collection Trust. Departmental changes at the County
and then the Covid emergency response delayed this work but it is now complete.

2.5

At their meeting in June 2021, the committee approved the setup of a charitable
body to support fundraising for Museums Worcestershire. This approval was
confirmed by the City’s Policy & Resources Committee and the County’s Cabinet with
the City’s Managing Director and the County’s Director of People delegated to enter
into all necessary legal agreements required for both councils in the establishment of
the charitable body and to receive the donation, in consultation with the Chair and
Vice Chairs of the Policy & Resources Committee and the Chair of the Joint Museums
Committee.

3

Information

TICKENHILL COLLECTION TRUST
3.3

A working group drawn from Worcestershire County Council’s legal and finance
teams reviewed the position of the Tickenhill Collection Trust. Investigation
considered if this charity should be merged with the establishment of the new
fundraising charity.

Page 30

It was advised that the Charity Commission would be unlikely to support a significant
change of purpose which might put the Tickenhill Collection at risk, and that merging
activities would make the responsibilities of a single charity very complicated. The
actions required to compliantly retain the existing structure were therefore pursued.
3.4

3.5

Maintaining the Tickenhill Collection charity in its current form requires the following
actions from Worcestershire County Council as the charity’s sole trustee:


The County Council members on the Joint Museums Committee are aware of
their oversight and decision-making responsibility for the Tickenhill Collection



The Joint Museums Committee receive an annual report on the charitable
activities of the Tickenhill Collection



The Tickenhill Collection is separately included in the County Council’s heritage
assets statement in their annual accounts and in the County Museum’s
Collections Development Policy



Worcestershire County Council finance staff complete the annual financial
return to the Charity Commission, as they do for the education charities where
the County Council is the sole trustee

These actions will be undertaken from 2021-22 onwards. The most recent annual
report for the Tickenhill Collection is appended to this report, and will form part of
the future annual work programme for the Joint Museums Committee. A briefing on
the Tickenhill Collection Trust will be given to all new committee members. Any
approvals required for the Tickenhill Collection will be brought to the Joint Museums
Committee via the committee work programme and will be a decision for the County
Council members of the Committee.

ESTABLISHMENT OF A FUNDRAISING CHARITABLE BODY
3.6

Worcester City Council appointed a solicitor with expertise in working with new
charities to support the setup of a fundraising charity for museums, and the drafting
of documentation for the proposed donation recently offered. A working party
including representation from the City and the County legal teams has reviewed the
charity’s setup documentation to ensure it aligns with each council’s governance of
their museums.

3.7

Following the skills matrix and requirements set out by the Charity Commission,
three independent setup trustees were brought together to oversee the
documentation required to submit an application to the Charity Commission for the
new charity.

3.8

These setup trustees are being advised by the solicitor in their decision making on
the standard documentation required to ensure that the charity can work
successfully long-term.

3.9

Following appropriate advice, the setup trustees have agreed a charity name of
Worcestershire Heritage, Art and Museums and a charity object of:

Page 31

The objects of the CIO are the promotion of the appreciation and enjoyment of
art, culture, heritage and science for the public benefit by encouraging the public
to participate and engage with museums and related services operated by
Museums Worcestershire.
The charitable object has been carefully worded by the advising solicitor so that it is
clear that the charity is there to support the City and County museums, but that it is
not being established to operate those museums, with governance responsibility
remaining with the Joint Museums Committee.
3.10

The solicitor has advised that, because the charity is not itself running a museum or
a contract for either council, that it should not have specific council-appointed
trustees. Instead trustees should be recruited for the skills they can bring to the
charity. Trustees could include serving councillors acting as trustees independently
from their councillor role.

3.11 The City’s Managing Director, the Chair and Vice Chairs of the City’s Policy & Review
Committee and the County’s Director of People, and the Chair of the Joint Museums
Committee, will continue to be updated as the next stage of work progresses, with
all legal agreements requiring either council’s involvement documented through the
delegated approval process.

Ward(s):
Contact Officer:
Supporting Papers:

All wards
Philippa Tinsley, Tel: 01905 25371, email:
philippa.tinsley@worcester.gov.uk
Appendix: Tickenhill Collection Annual Report 2020-21

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 33

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1

The Tickenhill Collection
Registered Charity, 527509
Annual Report 2020-21
Charitable Purpose and Activities
The collection was established as a charitable trust in 1958 and updated in 1970 with the following
purpose:
The maintenance and administration of the Tickenhill Collection which shall be placed or kept in such one or
more public rooms, halls, museums or other places for exhibition in Worcestershire or elsewhere and that it
shall be kept open for inspection by the public. Also to lend the said collection or any part thereof for public
exhibition or for educational purposes.
The Charitable Activities of the Tickenhill Collecton are:
The care and conservation of the objects, records and associated information from the Tickenhill Collection,
and the use of that collection for public benefit through display and educational activities.
Trustee
Worcestershire County Council.
The Tickenhill Collection is managed by Worcestershire County Council’s Joint Museum Service, Museums
Worcestershire, and the responsibility of Principal Curator of the Tickenhill Collection is within Museum
Worcestershire’s Social History Curator’s role.
The Tickenhill Collection is overseen by the two Worcestershire County Councillors serving on the Council’s
Joint Museums Committee.

2020-21 Achievements
Collection Care and Conservation
At the end of the 2020 – 2021 financial year, 1708 items from the following categories in the Tickenhill
Collection have been catalogued, wrapped and cleaned or conserved where appropriate:
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o

Decorative furniture
Taxidermy
Timepieces
Decorative boxes including puzzle boxes
Agricultural hooks
Stamps and brands
Leatherworking tools
Pot cranes
Horse Tack and bits
Wall clocks
Twine bailers

Tickenhill Collection Annual Report 2020-21

Page 1

Page 34
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o

Nautical lamps
Scythes
Apple hooks
Shepherds Crooks
Billhooks
Leather stamps
Shears
Pairing knives
Sewing Machines
Whetstones
Globes
Toys and games

Collection objects before and after conservation

Collection documentation in progress

Tickenhill Collection Annual Report 2020-21

Page 2

Page 35
Use of the Collection for Public Benefit
Three news articles featuring the Tickenhill Collection have been researched and published in the
Worcester Evening News and online. The collection featured in digital exhibitions and behind-the-scenes
virtual tours, curated by Museums Worcestershire to provide access during museum closures in lockdown.
All galleries in Worcestershire County Museum include objects from the Tickenhill Collection, making up
between 10 and 20% of the displays. In 2020-21, textiles and shoes from the Tickenhill collection have been
newly added to the costume displays at Hartlebury Castle. Despite national closures for large parts of the
year, social distancing and limited access, Hartlebury Castle’s visitors totalled 5,790 in 20-21.

Use of the Tickenhill Collection in wider partnership
In partnership with Worcestershire Children First’s workshops for looked-after children, the Tickenhill
collection was accessed via three Zoom workshops, where new visitors were provided with remote access
to collections, despite the pandemic.

Continuity during Covid lockdowns
Prior to 2020, management of the Tickenhill Collection was assisted by a team of two Volunteer Collections
Assistants, a Volunteer Conservation Assistant and a Volunteer Archivist. A weekly workshop provided
development of the collection and improved accessibility via updated collections information, published
research and conservation cleaning of objects ready for display. The sessions also provided valuable
wellbeing opportunities for volunteers involved as a means of socialising and being part of something
worthwhile and meaningful.
The 2020 Covid19 pandemic saw the unavoidable cancellation of this volunteer programme and all positive
outputs due to a national lockdown. Even as restrictions were lifted, many volunteers also fell into high risk
categories, making group activities too high a risk to entertain.
To support our volunteers supporting both the Tickenhill Collection and the wider City and County
collections, Museums Worcestershire applied to the Esmee Fairbairn – Sustaining Engagement with
Collections Fund, facilitated by the Museums Association. A successful bid saw the creation of the
Volunteers at Home – Access not Isolation project. This was a pioneering pilot for the benefit of the entire
museums sector. It saw volunteers equipped and trained to digital technology in order to maintain regular
communication, and a complete reinvention of museum documentation procedures, insurance and loans
procedures, training and volunteering policy, so as to allow museum volunteers to work on real museum
objects, in their own homes.
The Tickenhill Collection volunteers formed the pilot group in this incredibly successful exercise that now
allows individuals to work with a museum remotely, regardless of their circumstances and has created
hugely enhanced accessibly between museums and the people who benefit from the collections they
safeguard. Enhanced access whilst maintaining a duty of care, provided huge well-being benefits for our
isolated volunteers, and can now be applied to any individuals finding themselves isolated or lonely.
The Volunteers at Home project was showcased at the 2020 national Museums Association Conference and
will covered again in 2021. The project has been used twice as a case study for London Museums and
Archives Museum Development programme as model of the enhanced of museum’s collection
engagement.

Tickenhill Collection Annual Report 2020-21

Page 3

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 37

Agenda Item 10

Report to: Joint Museums Committee, 17th September 2021
Report of: Museums Manager

Subject:

JOINT MUSEUMS COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME

1.

Recommendation

1.1

The Joint Committee is asked to note its future work programme and
consider whether there are any matters it would wish to be incorporated.

2

Background

2.1

In order to allow the Joint Committee to manage its future work programme, a list of
anticipated items for 2022, as set out in the rolling agenda managed by Worcester
City Council Democratic Services team, has been included in section 3 below.

2.2

Following the adoption of the Museums Worcestershire Strategic Plan 2019-2024 at
the meeting in June 2019, a programme of decisions aligned to the priorities and
deadlines of that plan has been included in the work programme.

2.3

Members of the committee should consider if they would like to add any additional
items to the work programme over the upcoming year.

3

Information

3.1

21 January, 2022 10-11.30am, at Worcester Guildhall.
Members workshop on future development planning

3.2

3 March 2022, 10am at Worcester Guildhall.
The meeting to cover:
1) 2021-22 Quarter 3 Performance
2) Finance 3rd Quarter Monitoring Report
3) 2022-23 Service Plan
4) Worcestershire Soldier Gallery
5) Joint Museums Committee Work Programme

Page 38

3.3

7 June 2022, at The Commandery, with a 9am introduction tour to new initiatives on
site for the Committee.
The meeting to cover:
1) Election of Chair and Appointment of Vice Chair (County Council Chair, City
Council Vice Chair)
2) 21-22 Annual Review and Performance
3) Finance 4th Quarter Monitoring Report
4) County Museum and Collections Centre Review
5) Joint Museums Committee Work Programme

3.4

September 2022 meeting to cover:
1) 2022-23 Quarter 1 Performance
2) Finance 1st Quarter Monitoring Report
3) 2023 Fees & Charges
4) Budget 2023/24 (if required)
5) Joint Museums Committee Work Programme

3.5

November 2022 meeting to cover:
1) 2022-23 Quarter 2 Performance
2) Finance 2nd Quarter Monitoring Report
3) City Council Staff Accommodation and Property Review
4) Tickenhill Trust Annual Report
5) Joint Museums Committee Work Programme

Ward(s):
Contact Officer:
Background Papers:

All wards
Philippa Tinsley, Tel: 01905 23371, email:
philippa.tinsley@worcester.gov.uk
none

Page 39

Agenda Item 11

Report to: Joint Museums Committee, 19th November 2021
Report of: Museums Manager

Subject:
1.

MUSEUM ADMISSION CHARGES

Recommendation
That the Joint Committee:

1.1

approve Hartlebury Castle Preservation Trust’s proposed 2022 admission
charges for Hartlebury Castle, and

1.2

approve the piloting of an admission charge for special temporary
exhibitions at Worcester Art Gallery and recommend this new charge to be
added to Worcester City Council’s 2022-23 fees and charges.

2

Background

HARTLEBURY CASTLE ADMISSIONS
2.1

Under the terms of their agreement with Worcestershire County Council (WCC),
Hartlebury Castle Preservation Trust (HCPT) should propose any changes to the joint
admissions charges before November each year.

2.2

Admission income for the whole site and castle are shared between the two partners,
with the formula for the split for each type of ticket laid out in the agreement.
Performance in 2021 so far has resulted in the actual split (including the sale of
grounds-only tickets) as 44% of admissions income to WCC and 56% to HCPT.

2.3

HCPT have submitted a proposal for new admission charges to Hartlebury Castle in
2022 and these, along with their benchmarking review and information about their
medium-term planning regarding admission charges, are attached as the appendix to
the report ‘Hartlebury Admissions’.

SPECIAL EXHIBITIONS AT WORCESTER ART GALLERY
2.4

Museums Worcestershire have focused on the temporary exhibition programme at
Worcester Art Gallery for the last decade, with the programme growing in ambition,
profile and audience appeal. The annual budget for temporary exhibitions has not
increased since the joint service was formed in 2010, with the team now working
hard each year to bring in grant funding to support the programme. As well as
bringing important art and interesting history to Worcester, temporary exhibitions
now routinely offer additional interpretation in different formats, family trails and
formal exhibition resources, talks for different ages, and community outreach

Page 40

partnerships, all tailored to ensure the exhibition has maximum impact for local
residents.
2.5

If the Art Gallery is to continue to grow and raise the profile of Worcester as a
cultural destination the service needs to investigate a resilient mixed-funding model
for temporary exhibitions, as well as capital investment for its permanent facilities.

2.6

National museums pioneered the business model of free permanent collection
displays alongside chargeable temporary exhibitions to ensure that the public always
had access to the museums, but that resources could keep pace to mount
exhibitions with profile and reach. In the past five years, many regional museums
have followed this model, charging for some special (and expensive to mount)
exhibitions across the year. This includes Cheltenham, Birmingham, Wolverhampton,
Gloucester and, most recently Hereford, who have set an adult admission charge of
£5 for their current Grayson Perry exhibition.

2.7

Museums Worcestershire have this year started using Art Tickets, an online booking
system enabling visitors to easily pre-book and pay for events and talks which could
be extended to exhibition ticketing. The system includes good data analytics, giving
an overview of the audience breakdown.

2.8

New charges for the museum service must be approved by the relevant
committee/cabinet of the appropriate authority – in this case Worcester City’s Policy
and Resources Committee.

3

Preferred Option

3.1

The cost of leisure activities has changed significantly since the last benchmarking of
Hartlebury Castle’s admission charges in 2019. Hartlebury Castle is currently one of
the cheapest similar attractions in the area.

3.2

It is recommended that the committee approve HCPT’s proposal for 2022 admission
charges to the whole site at Hartlebury Castle, in recognition of the ongoing
improvements to the visitor offer:
Adult

£ 11.50

Child

£

Concession

£ 10.00

Family

£ 32.00

6.50

3.3

It is proposed to use the autumn 2022 exhibition at Worcester Art Gallery, of a
significant and well-known historical artist, to pilot an exhibition charge. The income
would part-fund the exhibition costs. The pilot would be evaluated and the results
included in the committee’s forward planning for the Art Gallery.

3.4

It is proposed to set a new charge of between £2 and £5 for entrance to occasional
special temporary exhibitions at the Art Gallery. A discussion on dynamic pricing,
incentives, discounts and free admission categories, as well as work to overcome
non-financial barriers to entry, will be included on the agenda of the Joint Museums
Committee January workshop.

Page 41

If this committee approves the adoption of this new charge, it will be added into the
City Council’s Policy and Resources Fees and Charges report, scheduled for February
2022.
3.5

There is no intention to propose a new charge to view the permanent displays at the
Art Gallery & Museum – which are now under development planning - or to charge
for all temporary exhibitions.

4

Alternative Options Considered

4.1

HCPT were unwilling for admission charges to Hartlebury Castle to increase at the
August inflation levels used for other museum fees & charges, both out of concern of
presenting a low-quality message for the site and the need to meet income targets
in their business plan following investment into facilities.

4.2

WCC and HCPT will be discussing improvements to the current income split and
negotiation process as part of the future planning and options appraisal of the site.

4.3

Additional grant funding has already been sought for the autumn 2022 exhibition at
Worcester Art Gallery. The exhibition will be funded from many components, of
which income from admission charges would make up only a small part.

4.4

Reducing the ambition of the exhibition programme would have wider knock-on
impacts, with the secondary spend in Worcester of each special exhibition calculated
at half a million pounds.

5

Implications

5.1

Financial and Budgetary Implications
Earned income makes up about a third of Museums Worcestershire’s operating
budget. Increasing charges in line with increasing costs and market enables the
service to maintain service levels rather than decline.

5.2

Legal and Governance Implications
Worcestershire County Council has started to review the current leases and
agreements with Hartlebury Castle Preservation Trust, in advance of the current
lease end in 2026.

5.3

Risk Implications
There is a risk inherent in a service model with a significant element of earned
income. Spreading the risk by diversifying the sources of that income makes that
business model more resilient.

5.4

Corporate/Policy Implications
There are no policy implications in this report.

5.5

Equality Implications
It is important that the equality implications of any new charging model are properly
investigated using robust data. Piloting a new charge at Worcester Art Gallery
enables that to take place and feed into future planning. The proposed pilot would
include discounts and free admission categories for Worcester residents, as well as
community working to overcome non-financial barriers to entry to the Art Gallery.

Page 42

5.6

Human Resources Implications
Museums Worcestershire’s budget is 86% staff costs. If earned income does not
keep up with the cost of employing staff, then budget planning will have to put staff
at risk.

5.7

Health and Safety Implications
There are no H&S implications to this report.

5.8

Social, Environmental and Economic Implications
Museums Worcestershire’s ambitions are to make the museums impactful in
residents’ lives and to bring visitors and income into the county and city by raising
the profile of its quality cultural destinations.

Ward(s):
Contact Officer:
Background Papers:

All wards
Philippa Tinsley, Tel: 01905 25371, email:
philippa.tinsley@worcester.gov.uk
none

Page 43
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Agenda Item 14

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 45
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 1

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 47
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Agenda Item 15

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 51
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Agenda Item 15
Appendix 1

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 59
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Agenda Item 16

This page is intentionally left blank

